
 

 

 
CULTURE AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY PANEL 

 

Date: Thursday 10th February, 2022 
Time: 1.00 pm 

Venue: Virtual 

Please note this is a virtual meeting.  

The meeting will be livestreamed via 
the Council’s YouTube channel at 
Middlesbrough Council - YouTube 

 
AGENDA 

 
 

 
1.   Apologies for Absence 

 
 

  

2.   Declarations of Interest 
 
To receive any declarations of interest. 
 
 

  

3.   Minutes - Culture and Communities Scrutiny Panel - 16 
December 2021 
 
 

 3 - 8 

4.   Locality working 
 
The following officers/ representatives will be in attendance to 
provide the Panel with an overview of locality working and the 
impact this has had in the community towards crime and anti-
social behavior. 
 
Adam Parkinson- Senior Neighbourhood Development 
Manager  
 
Melanie Boyce Neighbourhood Safety Officer.   
 
Kim May Streets Ahead  
 
Councillor Chris Cooke – Ward Councillor for Newport Ward  
 

 9 - 18 

Page 1

https://www.youtube.com/user/middlesbroughcouncil


 

Sgt Steve Pattison- Cleveland Police 
 
 

5.   Chair's OSB Update 
 
The Chair will provide a verbal update from the meeting held 
on 18 January 2022. 
 
 

  

6.   Any other urgent items which in the opinion of the Chair, may 
be considered. 
 
 

  

 
Charlotte Benjamin 
Director of Legal and Governance Services 

 
Town Hall 
Middlesbrough 
Wednesday 2 February 2022 
 
MEMBERSHIP 
 
Councillors C McIntyre (Chair), G Wilson (Vice-Chair), R Arundale, S Dean, C Dodds, 
L Lewis, D McCabe, J Rostron and M Nugent 
 
Assistance in accessing information 
 
Should you have any queries on accessing the Agenda and associated information 
please contact Susie Blood, (01642) 729645, Susie_blood@middlesbrough.gov.uk 
 

Page 2



Culture and Communities Scrutiny PanelThursday 16 December 2021 

1 
 

CULTURE AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY PANEL 
 
A meeting of the Culture and Communities Scrutiny Panel was held on Thursday 16 December 2021. 

 
PRESENT:  
 

Councillors C McIntyre (Chair), S Dean, C Dodds, L Lewis, D McCabe and 
J Rostron,   
 

 
PRESENT BY 
INVITATION: 

 

 
ALSO IN 
ATTENDANCE: 

 Chief Inspector D Tomlinson 

 
OFFICERS: Susie Blood, Geoff Field, Marion Walker and Susan Lightwing 
 
APOLOGIES FOR 
ABSENCE: 

G Wilson and R Arundale 

 
21/13 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
 There were no Declarations of Interest received at this point in the meeting.  

 
21/14 MINUTES - CULTURE AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY PANEL - 18 NOVEMBER 2021 

 
 The minutes of the Culture and Communities Scrutiny Panel held on 18 November 2021 were 

submitted and approved as a correct record. 
 

21/15 CHAIR'S OSB UPDATE 
 

 The Chair provided a verbal update from the Overview and Scrutiny Board held on 7 
December 2021. 
 
AGREED- That the update be noted. 
 

21/16 TOUGH ENOUGH? ENFORCEMENT IN MIDDLESBROUGH AND ITS IMPACT ON CRIME 
AND ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR. 
 

 The Chair welcomed the Head of Stronger Communities and Chief Inspector Tomlinson, 
Cleveland Police to the meeting to provide information in relation to the Panel’s review on 
Tough Enough? Enforcement in Middlesbrough and its impact on crime and anti-social 
behaviour. 
 
Following on from a previous meeting, where the Panel had learnt about the Council’s 
approach to enforcement, they were keen to establish an understand of community policing in 
Middlesbrough and gage a better understanding of the levels of crime and anti-social 
behaviour across the town. The information provided linked to terms of reference 2 of the 
report- To understand the nature and levels of anti-social behaviour and crime across the 
town. Has there been improvement or decline over the past 2 years? 
 
The Head of Stronger Communities advised that she would provide the Panel with an 
overview of the crime and anti-social statistics. The data was Cleveland Police data and 
showed crime and anti-social behaviour rates for: 
 

• Cleveland Local Authority rate comparisons 

• Middlesbrough Wards total numbers 

• Middlesbrough Wards rates 

The first graph provided information for 100,000 population for Middlesbrough. The statistics 
showed that Crime rates for Middlesbrough in 2019 and 2020 remained close to the other 
Local authorities, however looking at the start of 2021 the crime rate had climbed further away 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Thursday 16th December, 2021  

from the other Local authorities as the year was progressing. It was encouraging to see a 
reduction of crime and anti-social behavior in October 2021/ November 2021, however the 
gap between local authorities was significantly wide. 
 
The Head of Stronger Communities advised that there was a change in recording for Crime 
and anti-social behavior in April 2021, which was highlighted due to the significant drip in 
recording. 
 
In terms of anti-social behavior, the statistics showed although Middlesbrough has higher anti-
social behavior rates than other local authorities, it was encouraging that the rates in 
Middlesbrough were at their lowest in 3 years. 
 
CRIME IN MIDDLESBROUGH- analysis and rates 
 
In terms of crime across Middlesbrough, the Head Stronger Communities provided a ward 
analysis. The 2021-22 data was incomplete as this ran from 1 April 2021- 31 March 2022. 
Crime totals per ward shows that nearly all wards (excluding Brambles & Thorntree, Park end 
& Beckfield, and Ayresome) saw a decrease in crime from 2019-2020. 
 
The statistics, also showed some wards such as Hemlington, Ladgate, Kader, and Central 
have already recorded more crimes, or were nearly higher than 2020. 
The highest crime rates still remain the Central ward, however this was not uncommon to 
Towns due to the Town center effect, as there was quite often an increase due to shop lifting 
in  prime issues within this area. North Ormesby was second and Newport third.  
 
In terms of crime rates, the 2021 figure was not fully complete so it was expected that they will 
be lower. 
 
A decrease from 2019 to 2020 was evident. However looking from 2018-2020 ward such as 
Newport, Park End & Beckfield, Brambles & Thorntree, and Park either increase or remained 
at a similar rate. 
 
ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR- analysis and rate 
 
In terms of anti-social behavior analysis, the statistics showed an increased in 17 out of 20 
wards from 2019-2020. This was expected due to an increase in Anti-social behavior during 
COVID and the breach of lockdown rules. 
 
However the Head of Service advised that anti-social behavior in all wards so far in 2021 has 
remained lower than both 2019 and 2020.  
 
In terms of rates, this does not change significantly except when looking at the Anti-social 
behavior rate, the only slight difference was that Park End & Beckfield comes higher than Park 
ward. This was due to less Anti-social behaviour occurring in the ward and a smaller 
population. 
 
Neighbourhood Policing  
The Chair welcomed Chief Inspector Tomlinson to the meeting who was in attendance to 
provide an overview of Middlesbrough Neighbourhood Police Team and Policing in 
Middlesbrough and how they are working with partners to tackle some of the issues within 
Middlesbrough. 
 
The Chief Inspector began with an overview, advising that he had been in charge of 
Neighbourhood policing for 2 years (as Covid 19 hit).  
The panel were advised that strong relationships have been built with key partners including 
for example; Middlesbrough Council; Cleveland Fire Brigade; Thirteen Housing and 
Neighbourhood Policing Middlesbrough. Cleveland Police have also started to reach out to the 
community to help bridge the gap between the police and key groups.  
 
Key meetings take place with these partners including: 

 Daily partnership meeting where key partners will discuss key areas of concern 
relating to crime and anti-social behaviour. This meeting looks at trends and patterns 
to identify issues early.  

 monthly meetings to deal with long term issues e.g. currently operating Hemlington 

Page 4



Thursday 16th December, 2021  

Strategic Group. 
 monthly problem solving meetings- identify long term problems 

 4-6 weekly organised crime group meetings (prevent, pursue, protect and prepare) 
 Active intelligence group (run by the local authority) 
 Tasking and coordinating group for Middlesbrough – focusing on community work 
 Community safety partnership 

 Local police and delivery group within Cleveland Police- who hold Cleveland Police to 
account. 

In terms of the resourcing structure of Middlesbrough, Cleveland Police Neighbourhood 
Policing model was made up of the following: 
 
 
 

Superintendent Marc Anderson (South Commander) 
Chief Inspector Daryll Tomlinson 

 (dedicated to Neighbourhood policing in Middlesbrough) 
 

Middlesbrough North Insp Darren Birkett /  Middlesbrough South   T/Insp Chris Turner 
 
Each have 3 teams each- consisting of Sargent’s PC’s and PCSO’s who cover all 20 wards in 
Middlesbrough. 
 
On top of neighbourhood policing, the below teams listed are in place to help the delivery of 
Middlesbrough across Middlesbrough. 
 

 Response Teams 24/7 
 CID 
 Safeguarding Teams 
 Sex Offender Management 
 Complex Exploitation Team 

 Community Safety 
 Homicide and Major Enquiry Team  
 Cyber Crime 
 Fraud 
 Organised Crime Unit  

 Intelligence 
Their goal was to: 

 
 
The Panel were advised that the Neighborhood Strategy operates and is in line with the 
National Neighbourhood Strategy. The aim of Neighbourhood policing hits within three 

Page 5



Thursday 16th December, 2021  

headings; Engagement; Problem Solving and Targeted activity.  
 
The Chief Inspector outlined some of the activities undertaken under the 3 headings:  
 

• Engagement 

• Community Engagement Ward Pledge 

• Ward priorities, Ward Newsletters, Ward meetings 

• Visibility – Right People, Right Places, Right Times 

• Ring backs, Revisits – Victims Code of practice – meaningful communication 

• Schools, Youth Clubs, Youth provisions – Linx, Youth Focus North East. 

• Problem Solving 

• Problem Solving OEL (Police)  

• Problem Solving Plans (Partnership Working) 

• Repeat Callers, Repeat Victims, Repeat Locations 

• Targeted Activity 

• TCG Targets 

• Who is causing our communities the issues. 

The Chief Inspector advised that visible policing works, which has been demonstrated by a 
week of action in North Ormesby and a week of action in Hemlington. 
 
Issues in fulfilling this need was demand, and although demand in some areas since covid 
restrictions have eased slightly, there has been significant demands and challenging in other 
areas e.g. 999 calls and sometimes neighbourhood policing teams need to support these calls 
if they fall within their areas. 
 
Other key areas of Government investment were through the Hard to Hope – Middlesbrough 
have invested as part of project adder (tacking drugs- support individuals and treatment- 
investing in staff and working on reducing violence and firefighting culture). There was also 
value in working with communities especially with MFC, by organizing football with young 
people to bridge the gap (Hemlington and park end).  The Chief Inspector further outlined that 
regular updates are sent out on performance, however there was a real push on an 
engagement framework to understand the communities and their issues.  
 
Following the presentation, the Chief Inspector was asked further about the Neighbourhood 
Policng model and whether this was under resourced, and if so , what impact this had on the 
community.  
 
The Chief Inspector outlined that over the past 2 years,  a resourcing model was identified by 
the force as to what was required to operate Neighbourhood policing, however to date they 
have not established the numbers that were envisaged.  
The numbers anticipated were as follows: 
34 police officers 
30 PCSOs 
6 Sergeants 
2 Inspectors 
At present, the numbers are in the high 20s, and along with sickness levels and absence and 
other demands, reaching the desired number of officers has been quite challenging. However 
the Panel were reassured that new officers (4-5) would be joining the force in early 2022 to 
increase the model and there was a feeling across our partnerships that the model would be 
fulfilled effectively.  The Chief Inspector admitted more could be done, however without a full 
resource model this proved difficult.   
 
It was excepted that each ward should have one designated  PC and PCSO to discuss and 
raise issues with, however due to demand this quite often is not the case. In an ideal world, 

Page 6



Thursday 16th December, 2021  

the force would like 5 PCs and 5 PSCOs in one ward, however at present this is unrealistic. 
Cleveland Police are recruiting officers, however it takes time to come through the 3 year 
training programme, however they hope results will be made once officers are in place. 
 
The panel queries, the high crime rates in Middlesbrough and the reasons behind this. In 
response, the Chief Inspector advised that there regular meetings to discuss this, however 
compared to other local authorities, Middlesbrough has a high level of social housing, it has 
economic issues and demographics plays a huge part into crime levels. There is one custody 
suite in Middlesbrough and this adds to Middlesbrough being the central point. 
 
Another Panel Member advises that they felt Visible policing was not the case. 
The Chief Inspector agreed that having police in cars is not visible, however depending on 
resources, we are trying to ensure we have police officers being visable. He has now 
objection for a request for a ward walk, but we need to manage the demands which come into 
the force. The High viability does work as seen from the street wardens, however 
Middlebrough is the only Local Authority in the North East who have a dedicated policing team 
working in the town centre, which was funded by partnership working. This is an excellent 
resources to have in an area where ther eis the highest levels of crime and anti-social 
behavior. 
 
Local authorities works as a partnership with the police; this has been displayed by the weeks 
of action e.g. in Hemlingon, which have been excellent and are multi agency- targeting 
specific groups, support for victims, environmental issues. In terms of future engagement, the 
Chief inspector was unaware of future engagement strategy, however weeks of action were 
being communicated through the organisation. In terms of relying on other departments, 
neighbourhood policing was unable to be supplied 24hr policing and therefore support from 
other departments was required. 
 
Visible policing can also be displayed through CCTV- no doubt that is a deterrent for crime. In 
November 2021, Cleveland police reviewed 130 pieces of CCTV- 81 prices of CCTV have 
been used to take forward for prosecutions.  
 

 What Police cover do we have after 10pm and through the night? 
Neighbourhood shift patters 8pm/11pm or midnight but staffs have responsibility to change 
their shifts depending on issues in their ward. 
During the night, they are dealt with within the response teams, but they are discussed on a 
daily basis and they put taskings in place. Chief Inspector is also dependent on other teams 
when Neighbourhood policing is not available. Everyone should be there to support 
community policing. We can’t do this without the support from partners.  
 

 Covid lockdown- impact on domestic violence 
Whilst the Chief Inspector did not have the figures, there has been a lot of investment, and 
slightly more demand since covid, however the police were now seeing the financial effects of 
covid  e.g mental health issues. 
The Head of Stronger Communities further discussed some of the partnership activities the 
Local authority , which had been discussed at previous meeting, these included:  
 

- House closures 
- Civil injunctions 
- Accredited powers designed by Cleveland Police  
- Public space protection order 
- Thirteen/ partnership 
- CCTV 

The Chair thanked the Chief Inspector and Head of Stronger communities for their 
presentations. 
 
AGREED- That the information be noted and incorporated within the Panel’s final report.  
 

21/17 ANY OTHER URGENT ITEMS WHICH IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIR, MAY BE 
CONSIDERED. 
 

 
Page 7



Thursday 16th December, 2021  

 
 

Page 8



Locality Working Overview and update.

P
age 9

A
genda Item

 4



Locality working involves a system change to the current operational delivery model across Council services. It seeks
to achieve joined-up systems and reconfigure relationships between statutory organisations, partners and the
community. It will involve developing collaborative approaches to address the underlying causes of community
problems and build capacity within the community in order for residents to take charge of their own future, to have
a strong voice and to build social capital and connections within the community. It was agreed that Locality Working
will commence with two pilots in North Ormesby and Newport. The pilot period commenced in April 2020.

P
age 10



Business case for Pilot areas.

The Newport Ward is the 5th most deprived ward in Middlesbrough moving from the 123rd most deprived ward nationally in 2007
to the 38th most deprived ward in 2015. The North Ormesby Ward is the most deprived ward in Middlesbrough and the 2nd most
deprived ward in England. Newport had the 3rd highest number of recorded Racially Motivated crimes with only Central and North
Ormesby having more. With all three wards having more than double the Middlesbrough average per 1,000 population.

In addition, these wards had the highest level of anti social behaviour per 1,000 population in 2018/19.

Newport Ward had the 2nd highest rate of female victims of violent crime per 1,000 population in 2018/19 with only North Ormesby
having more. When looking at alcohol related hospital admissions to James Cook University Hospital, Newport Ward had the 3rd
highest number of admissions in 2018/19 and in the previous year it was 2nd highest. When looking at alcohol and substance related
ambulance pick-up data, Newport Ward had the 3rd highest level of recorded pick-ups with only North Ormesby and Central having
higher levels.

When looking at incidents reported to Middlesbrough Council in 2019, Newport Ward had the highest number of low level antisocial
behaviour and environmental crimes and 2nd highest level of fly-tipping.

P
age 11



The high level project objectives are as follows:

Healthier population
People feel safe
Increase satisfaction in environmental standards
Improve perception of community cohesion
Improve physical appearance of neighbourhood
Improve customer experience (Council and partners)
Build Community Capacity
Improve economic outcomes
Better outcomes for children

These are tracked through 7 action plans that are progressed and reviewed through the Locality model.  Each 
action plan has a lead from the Locality model.  Sub groups and working groups are established around specific 
issues i.e. vulnerable adults, environmental issues etc.

P
age 12



Benefit Description

Improved public perception within the 2 localities Improved perception of: Crime, ASB, ability to influence decision making, community cohesion, ability of LA and 
partners to tackle local issues 

Improved outcomes for Children and families Reduction in the number of LAC. 
Reduction in the number of children subject to sexual exploitation and criminal exploitation 
Increased educational attainment 

Improved physical environment Cleaner environmental standards engaging with the community to share responsibility. 
Reduction in the number of people raising issues that have been reported but not dealt with

Stronger communities Communities that engage and take shared ownership of local issues.  

Improve user experience A single point of contact within the community for the public and professionals will remove time spent navigating 
services improving user experience.

Right service first time. As the pilot areas will provide a single source for coordinating referrals and signposting information. 

Having a multifaceted team will encourage the sharing of 
knowledge and skills and result in an improved customer 
experience 

The pilots will bring together staff from multiple areas across the Council and partners agencies, meaning more 
knowledge and information will be available to inform decision making on referrals which will lead to efficiency 
gains.

Utilise all services By having access to all services available including voluntary sector, the load will be spread across a wider range of 
providers easing pressures particularly on social care.

Support for integrated working The pilot will put into practice the key principles of integrated working including relationship building, improved 
communications, information sharing, pooled budgets, joint planning and management of resources. These will 
provide a governance framework and working practices that can be re-used by future integrated working 
initiatives

Benefit Description

Improved public perception within the 2 localities Improved perception of: Crime, ASB, ability to influence decision making, community cohesion, ability of LA and 
partners to tackle local issues 

Improved outcomes for Children and families Reduction in the number of LAC. 
Reduction in the number of children subject to sexual exploitation and criminal exploitation 
Increased educational attainment 

Improved physical environment Cleaner environmental standards engaging with the community to share responsibility. 
Reduction in the number of people raising issues that have been reported but not dealt with

Stronger communities Communities that engage and take shared ownership of local issues.  

Improve user experience A single point of contact within the community for the public and professionals will remove time spent navigating 
services improving user experience.

Right service first time. As the pilot areas will provide a single source for coordinating referrals and signposting information. 

Having a multifaceted team will encourage the sharing of 
knowledge and skills and result in an improved customer 
experience 

The pilots will bring together staff from multiple areas across the Council and partners agencies, meaning more 
knowledge and information will be available to inform decision making on referrals which will lead to efficiency 
gains.

Utilise all services By having access to all services available including voluntary sector, the load will be spread across a wider range of 
providers easing pressures particularly on social care.

Support for integrated working The pilot will put into practice the key principles of integrated working including relationship building, improved 
communications, information sharing, pooled budgets, joint planning and management of resources. These will 
provide a governance framework and working practices that can be re-used by future integrated working 
initiatives

Benefits and Outcomes and Outcomes.

P
age 13



Newport
Environment: 5x Staff, 5 days per week (Existing)
Community Safety/SLL: 10.5x Staff (Existing)
Education EMAT team: 6 x Staff 5 days per week (Existing)
Adult Social Care: 1x Staff equivalent 5 days per week (New)
Cleveland Police: 10x Staff, 4x hot desks, 7 days per week 
(New)
Public Protection: 2x Staff, 5 days per week (New)
Revenue and Benefits team: 2x Staff hot desks 2 days per 
week (New)
Early Help team: 2x Staff 5 days per week (New)
Public Health team to include space for commissioned 
services: 2x Staff 2 days per week (New)
Thirteen Housing (Neighbourhood Manager) 1x Staff, 5 days 
per week (New)
Children Social Care 2 x Social Workers – 1 from assessment 
service and 1 from safeguarding service. As cases transition 
they will be allocated work from the Newport Ward and 
spend increasing amount of time in the Hub (New)
Total number of dedicated staff (some will work shifts i.e. 
Police) = 43

North Ormesby
Environment: 1x Staff, 5 days per week (Existing)
Community Safety/SLL: 7x Staff, 5 days per week (Existing)
Education EMAT team: 1x Staff, 5 days per week (Existing)
Thirteen Housing / MBC (Neighbourhood Manager) 2x Desk 
5 days per week (Existing)
Adult Social Care: 1x Staff, 5 days per week (New)
Cleveland Police: 1x Staff, 5 days per week – This will be 
revised as Neighbourhood Policing is re-introduced (New)
Public Protection: 2x Staff, 5 days per week (New)
Revenue and Benefits team: 2x Staff, 2 days per week (New)
Early Help team: 1x Staff, 5 days per week (New)
Public Health team to include space for commissioned 
services: 2x Staff, 2 days per week (New)
Children Social Care 3 x Social Workers and 1x Resource 
Worker (New)
Total number of dedicated staff (some will work shifts 
i.e. Police) = 24

Resource Allocation.

P
age 14



Impact on Crime and Anti-social behaviour.

• Allocated resource for both Localities.
• Working groups for specific issues and actions.
• Police led action plan around People feeling safe.
• Dedicated action plan for Drugs and drug related issues.
• Weeks of action and ward specific operations.
• Joint meetings with dedicated officers to assist with diversion, engagement and assistance.
• Community engagement.
• Regular drop in events for Police and Council teams to offer assistance and opportunities for face to face 

reporting.
• Regular community feedback.
• Increase in high level intervention – house closures.
• Increased community intelligence and officer knowledge due to wider team and joint working.

P
age 15



Latest Data

Incidents of reported ASB
Q1 20/21Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 21/22             Q2 21/22         Q3 21/22 

Newport 523 349 374 244 258                       232                   172
North Ormesby 157 86 122 76 98                         106                   64 
Incidents of Police reported crime 

Q1 20/21Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 21/22            Q2 21/22         Q3 21/22 
Newport 151 185 177 144 219                      196                   165
North Ormesby 46 68 60 51 67                        65                      67
Incidents of Public reported crime

Q1 20/21 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 21/22 Q2 21/22 Q3 21/22
Newport 595 694 672 588 685 672 632
North Ormesby 192 214 215 232 244 297 247 

The model has also increased information sharing and helped to centre the approach to dealing with high level asb
this has resulted in an increase in high level interventions  with 9 House Closures, 3 Civil Injunctions and 9 injunction 
breaches taking place within Newport.

P
age 16



Feeling that Crime and ASB is improving Newport
* % of individuals indicating measure is a very or fairly big problem, desired outcome percentage decrease.
80.65% 74.19% 44.29%
Improvement in perception of gang nuisance Newport * % of individuals indicating measure is a very or fairly big 
problem, desired outcome percentage decrease.
64.51% 70.97% 36.91%

Feeling that Crime and ASB is improving North Ormesby
86.95 72.72% 74.12%
Improvement in perception of gang nuisance North Ormesby
71.74% 75.75% 77.14%

P
age 17



Perception survey in both localities completed in September 2020 a further survey linked to indicators 

was completed in March 2021. Next one is planned for September 2021. 

Perceptions of feeling safe during the day in Newport have risen from 31.18% of respondents feeling 

very safe or fairly safe in September 2020 to 35.49% in March 2021 to 68.65% in October 2021.

Perceptions of feeling safe during the day in North Ormesby have risen from 32.61% of respondents 

feeling very safe or fairly safe in September 2020 to 51.51% in March 2021 to 77.14% in October 2021.  

Perceptions of feeling safe after dark in Newport have risen from 9.68% of respondents feeling very or 

fairly safe on an evening in September 2020 to 12.90% in March 2021 to 48.98%. 

Perceptions of feeling safe after dark within North Ormesby have risen from 13.04% of respondents 

feeling very or fairly safe on an evening in September 2020 to 21.21% in March 2021 to 31.42%.  

Improved public perception within the 2 localities:

P
age 18


	Agenda
	3 Minutes - Culture and Communities Scrutiny Panel - 16 December 2021
	4 Locality working

